
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

Page 1 of 31 
 

TOWN OF APEX  1 
TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION 2 

THURSDAY, APRIL 30, 2026  3 
3:30 P.M.  4 

   5 
The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Thursday, April 30, 2026 at 6 

3:30 p.m. at the Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North 7 
Carolina.        8 
    9 
This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 10 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel: 11 
 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=A-e981iENBc&t=1049s 12 
     13 
[ATTENDANCE]        14 
Elected Body          15 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)     16 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Terry Mahaffey   17 
Councilmember Ed Gray    18 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman   19 
Councilmember Shane Reese     20 
Councilmember Sue Mu          21 
     22 
Town Staff          23 
Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis          24 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John          25 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone         26 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe          27 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman   28 
        29 
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below.         30 
        31 
[CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ATTENDANCE]         32 
         33 

Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m., welcomed everyone, 34 
and led everyone in the pledge of allegiance. He recognized Councilmember Reese’s 35 
birthday and all members to join in a celebratory song to recognize Councilmember 36 
Reese.  37 
 38 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=A-e981iENBc&t=1049s


DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 2 of 31 
 

[ADVANCING TREE PROTECTION IN APEX] 1 
 2 
 Planner III, Bruce Venable, said that the purpose of this presentation was to 3 
give recommendations for Apex’s tree protection and to get further direction from the 4 
Town Council. 5 
 6 

Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) Board Liaison, Nora Skinner, 7 
presented the following presentation on Advancing Tree Protection in Apex: 8 
 9 
[SLIDE NO. 1] 10 

 11 
[SLIDE NO. 2] 12 

 13 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 3 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 3] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 4] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 5] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 4 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 6] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 7] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 8] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 5 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 9] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 10] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 11] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 6 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 12] 1 

 2 
 Mr. Venable presented the recommendations from the Environmental 3 
Advisory Board (EAB).  4 
[SLIDE NO. 13] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 7 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 14] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 15] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 16] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 8 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 17] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 18] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 19] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 9 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 20] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 21] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 22] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 10 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 23] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 24] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 25] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 11 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 26] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 27] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 28] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 12 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 29] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 30] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 31] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 13 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 32] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 33] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 34] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 14 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 35] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 36] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 37] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 15 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 38] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 39] 3 

 4 
 5 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked about the implications for a property owner 6 
if a heritage or champion tree is located on private property. 7 
 Mr. Venable said that when a heritage or champion tree is located on a single-8 
family residential property, there is generally little the Town can do to require its 9 
preservation. He explained that, for example, if a property owner requests that a tree 10 
be recognized as a heritage or champion tree and subsequently sells the property, 11 
the new owner could remove the tree without Town intervention. He noted that, 12 
based on his experience in another jurisdiction, a significant cultural tree was 13 
protected through a zoning condition, and suggested that there may be situations 14 
where zoning conditions are a more appropriate tool than amendments to the Unified 15 
Development Ordinance (UDO). 16 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 16 of 31 
 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Mahaffey said that the presentation referenced 1 
incentives for preserving trees but did not include stronger preservation 2 
requirements or goals. He asked whether mandatory tree preservation measures had 3 
been evaluated or whether such requirements were not legally feasible. 4 
 Mr. Venable said this topic was part of the feedback received from Council 5 
and that staff could work with the Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) to develop 6 
recommendations regarding preservation percentages or varying levels of tree 7 
canopy protection. He noted that the EAB could also provide best practices and 8 
comparisons from other jurisdictions.  9 

Ms. Bunce said it would be helpful for staff to better understand what Council 10 
means by "barry" and encouraged Council to keep in mind that Resource 11 
Conservation Areas (RCAs) are generally undisturbed areas that already contain tree 12 
canopy. She noted that the EAB had provided recommendations regarding what 13 
should not qualify toward RCA canopy requirements and stated that staff would 14 
appreciate general guidance from Council unless Council preferred that staff first 15 
seek input from stakeholders. 16 
 Mayor Pro-Tempore Mahaffey asked whether staff had identified other 17 
municipalities with regulations specifically addressing tree canopy preservation. 18 
 Mr. Venable said that examples do exist and could be provided to Council, 19 
citing the City of Durham as one example. 20 
 Councilmember Zegerman stated that bringing examples from other 21 
jurisdictions back to Council would be beneficial for further discussion. 22 
 Councilmember Gray said it would be helpful to understand the feasibility of 23 
tree preservation requirements in situations where developments are located closer 24 
to roadways. He also asked whether compensation or fees related to the value of 25 
timber removed during development projects, particularly where extensive clear-26 
cutting occurs, could be explored.  27 

Mr. Venable stated that staff would need to consult with legal counsel 28 
regarding those considerations. 29 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that the Town does not currently appear to 30 
have the legal authority to impose an additional development fee related to tree 31 
removal but suggested that the issue could be further investigated. 32 
 Mayor Pro-Tempore Mahaffey said that a fee could potentially apply in 33 
situations where required tree canopy preservation standards cannot be met. 34 
 Councilmember Gray stated that additional development-related fees may be 35 
worth exploring, particularly given declining cost recovery over time, and expressed 36 
interest in identifying opportunities where fees could be increased for developments 37 
with significant tree removal impacts. 38 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 17 of 31 
 

 Councilmember Reese said that not all trees provide the same value and 1 
asked whether native species replanting requirements should include more specific 2 
standards regarding the types and diversity of trees to be planted. 3 
 Mr. Venable explained that the Design and Development Manual is currently 4 
being updated and includes a list of native tree species. He noted that additional 5 
detail could be incorporated to identify specific tree species that may warrant greater 6 
preservation effort.  7 

Councilmember Reese stated that he would support that approach and asked 8 
staff to explore whether Utilities could coordinate with the Urban Forestry initiative to 9 
identify tree-planting opportunities within established neighborhoods in the town 10 
core. 11 
 Mr. Venable said that the proposed Urban Forestry staff position would be 12 
responsible for analyzing areas within the town core that would benefit from 13 
additional tree planting to help reduce the urban heat island effect. He added that the 14 
position would also coordinate implementation of the Town's tree policies across 15 
departments and ensure consistent application of those policies by staff. 16 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that, in principle, the proposed ideas were 17 
positive and expressed interest in reviewing rough percentages of existing 18 
development conditions to help determine appropriate and potentially more 19 
aggressive tree preservation requirements. He also asked whether it would be 20 
feasible to establish a small municipal nursery to expand the Town's tree program by 21 
growing its own trees rather than purchasing them, potentially reducing costs. In 22 
addition, he suggested exploring opportunities within existing rights-of-way to 23 
require developers to plant additional streetscape trees to increase shade and 24 
improve walkability, particularly in areas identified as heat zones. 25 
 Mr. Venable said those concepts had been discussed but noted there can be 26 
challenges related to utility infrastructure and roadway restrictions. He summarized 27 
Council's priorities as including more aggressive tree canopy preservation standards, 28 
evaluation of approaches related to significant tree clearing during development, 29 
research into the feasibility of fees or other funding sources tied to tree loss or 30 
preservation, exploration of a potential municipal tree nursery program, identification 31 
of opportunities to expand street tree planting and urban forestry efforts throughout 32 
the community, and continued discussions with stakeholders to assess 33 
implementation options and challenges. 34 
 Councilmember Mu suggested researching whether allowing developers to 35 
build larger homes on fewer lots could preserve more trees by reducing the overall 36 
number of homes constructed. 37 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 18 of 31 
 

 Mr. Venable said that such concepts could fall under incentive-based flexibility 1 
standards, such as allowing increased building height or reduced minimum lot sizes, 2 
and could continue to be explored if Council wished to pursue those types of 3 
incentives. 4 
 Mayor Pro-Tempore Mahaffey asked how many applications had been 5 
received for the Plan the Peak program this year and how many trees were available 6 
for distribution.  7 

Ms. Skinner stated that approximately 234 applications had been received 8 
and that about 210 trees were distributed through the program. 9 
 Councilmember Reese recommended researching appropriate native tree 10 
species based on root structure and site conditions and suggested coordinating with 11 
NC State University or other universities to identify suitable fast-growing tree species 12 
and their availability. He also asked about the level of coordination among volunteer 13 
organizations and nonprofit partners and whether those efforts could be streamlined. 14 
 Ms. Skinner stated that coordination among partner organizations could be 15 
strengthened in the future. She noted that the Environmental Advisory Board has 16 
been serving as the Town's Tree City Board and that a Tree City Subcommittee 17 
consisting of three members had recently been established to help coordinate 18 
organizational efforts and events such as Arbor Day. 19 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked staff for the comprehensive presentation. 20 
 Mr. Venable stated that discussions with stakeholders would continue as the 21 
proposed initiatives move forward. 22 
 23 
[ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE IN THE TOWN OF APEX] 24 
 25 
 Innovations Consultant I, Connor McKinnis provided an overview of the 26 
Town's Information Technology Security and Innovations Division and discussed 27 
artificial intelligence (AI), including how it works and its potential applications, as part 28 
of the presentation. 29 
 30 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 19 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 1] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 2] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 3] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 20 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 4] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 5] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 6] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 21 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 7] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 8] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 9] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 22 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 10] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 11] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 12] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 23 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 13] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 14] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 15] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 24 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 16] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 17] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 18] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 25 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 19] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 20] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 21] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 26 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 22] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 23] 3 

 4 
 Councilmember Gray said he supported leveraging technology to reduce 5 
labor-intensive tasks and improve efficiency. He noted that AI could help reduce 6 
staffing demands for certain functions without overburdening remaining staff. 7 
 Councilmember Reese said discussions should prioritize resident privacy first, 8 
followed by Town security and system vulnerabilities. He referenced a reported 9 
incident involving Claude as an example of the potential risks associated with AI 10 
technology.  11 

Councilmember Mu said AI could be beneficial in assisting with public 12 
records requests by allowing residents to search the Town's public records database, 13 
potentially reducing staff time required to respond to requests. She also suggested AI 14 
could enhance customer service tools such as Ask Apex and referenced examples like 15 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 27 of 31 
 

reporting potholes or using Amazon's chatbot for customer support. She emphasized 1 
the importance of protecting resident privacy. 2 
 Mr. McKinnis said the capabilities of chatbots are significant and noted that 3 
the Town is already using AI through Ask Apex with its Polymorphic platform. He 4 
explained that the current version assists with answering questions and directing 5 
residents to services, while future enhancements could allow the chatbot to complete 6 
tasks such as scheduling bulk trash collection. He emphasized that the goal is not to 7 
replace staff but to free employees to focus on more complex requests requiring 8 
greater time and attention. 9 
 Councilmember Mu said that while early chatbots were often frustrating to 10 
use, the technology has improved significantly. 11 
 Mr. McKinnis provided additional context regarding the referenced Claude 12 
security incident, explaining that the system had been instructed to delete code and 13 
backups, resulting in the loss of data. He emphasized that security remains a high 14 
priority, both in protecting against external cyber threats and mitigating risks 15 
associated with human error or inappropriate instructions provided to AI systems. 16 
 Mayor Gilbert asked whether the Town has department-specific policies 17 
governing the use of AI, expressing concern about the potential misuse of AI by 18 
employees, including law enforcement personnel, and how such situations would be 19 
addressed. 20 
 Town Manager Vosburg said staff would need to verify whether department-21 
specific AI policies currently exist. 22 
 Mr. McKinnis said that certain aspects of AI use are already addressed through 23 
the Town's existing Information Technology policy governing employee use of data 24 
and technology, which all employees are required to acknowledge. He added that 25 
the current AI pilot programs do not involve sensitive data and stated that staff would 26 
not expand AI use involving sensitive information until an appropriate policy 27 
framework is established. 28 

Mayor Pro-Tempore Mahaffey said the range of opportunities presented by 29 
AI is extensive and expressed support for identifying practical applications that 30 
improve efficiency. He noted that some existing software solutions are expensive and 31 
inefficient and suggested that internally developed applications could provide more 32 
cost-effective alternatives. He encouraged staff to identify software needs that could 33 
make employees' jobs easier and improve operational efficiency across the 34 
organization. While expressing some skepticism toward chatbots, he acknowledged 35 
that the technology continues to evolve and voiced support for an IT team with 36 
technical AI expertise focused on implementation and innovation rather than policy 37 
development. 38 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 28 of 31 
 

Mr. McKinnis said the primary consideration is determining which priorities 1 
should be the focus, whether that involves reducing reliance on expensive software or 2 
maximizing the capabilities of software already purchased by the Town. He noted that 3 
many products are specifically designed for local governments but may not be fully 4 
utilized. He also discussed the potential for a centralized feedback collection and 5 
survey tool that would allow Apex to more efficiently gather resident input, rather 6 
than relying on multiple paid platforms such as SurveyMonkey. He provided examples 7 
of how data could be collected and explained that these tools could be implemented 8 
without exposing data to third parties or retaining images from public events beyond 9 
a brief period of time. He stated that the opportunities exist, but the Town's priorities 10 
and focus areas should guide implementation. 11 

Councilmember Reese said that, consistent with the Town's small-town 12 
character, public-facing services should remain human-centered whenever possible, 13 
with AI serving as a tool to support staff rather than replace direct customer service 14 
interactions. 15 

Mr. McKinnis stated that the overall consensus is that AI is intended to assist 16 
employees and improve efficiency, not replace personnel. 17 

Town Manager Randy Vosburg asked staff to provide a recap of the 18 
discussion and Council's feedback. 19 

Director Sacco recapped from the discussions, including prioritizing resident 20 
privacy and security, using AI tools to supplement services but not replace human 21 
customer service, maintaining the town’s small-town character, improving operational 22 
efficiency through responsible AI use, and ensuring transparency when AI-generated 23 
content is used. She said these points would be incorporated into future policy 24 
development and asked whether any additional considerations had been missed. 25 
 Councilmember Mu said that with the chatbot the option to talk with a live 26 
agent should always be given.  27 
 Director Sacco gave an example of when using chatbot was helpful to get a 28 
new driver’s license.  29 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 29 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 24] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE NO. 25] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE NO. 26] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 30 of 31 
 

[SLIDE NO. 27] 1 

 2 
 3 
 4 
[NAMING PRACTICES DISCUSSION] 5 
 6 
 Mayor Gilbert said he believed Town Manager Vosburg had previously 7 
distributed the naming policy but would resend it to Council. 8 
 Town Clerk Allen Coleman said that he thought Randy had sent the policy but 9 
he could send it again to everyone.  10 
 Mayor Gilbert said the Town regularly receives requests from residents 11 
seeking to name facilities or other public assets in honor of loved ones. He stated that 12 
there should be a standardized process and clear guidance for handling such 13 
requests. 14 
 Councilmember Gray said that requests for naming recognition have 15 
increased and said that establishing criteria for determining the significance of an 16 
honoree presents the greatest challenge. 17 
 Mayor Gilbert said that other municipalities have established naming policies 18 
and suggested researching best practices and consulting with legal counsel. 19 
 Town Manager Randy Vosburg stated that the Town already has a 20 
comprehensive policy addressing the naming of facilities, which Town Clerk Coleman 21 
had resent to Council. He added that staff has also been working on policies related 22 
to group sponsorships. He explained that the current gap involves requests that do 23 
not clearly fall under either facility naming or sponsorships, such as naming a bench 24 
or similar amenity, and suggested revisiting the existing naming policy to address 25 
those situations. 26 



DRAFT | APRIL 30, 2026 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 31 of 31 
 

 Councilmember Gray said he supports recognizing individuals while they are 1 
still living and suggested using the existing facility naming policy as a framework for 2 
evaluating requests involving non-facility assets. 3 
 Mayor Pro-Tempore Mahaffey said there is an important distinction between 4 
recognition associated with retirement or service celebrations and broader public 5 
naming decisions. He noted that gestures such as dedicating an item during a 6 
retirement celebration are intended to honor an individual's service and should not 7 
necessarily serve as the model for broader naming policies. 8 
 Councilmember Reese said he agreed with that distinction, particularly in 9 
situations involving sponsorships or donor-funded amenities such as benches. He 10 
acknowledged the value of honoring individuals during their lifetime but observed 11 
that, historically, public recognition has often come after an individual's service has 12 
concluded. He stated that his personal philosophy favors honoring individuals 13 
without creating an expectation of recognition during their service. 14 
 Councilmember Mu suggested establishing tiers for naming recognition, such 15 
as eligibility criteria for retired Council members based on years of service or for 16 
employees with long-term service to the Town. 17 
 Mayor Gilbert stated that staff should research the issue and return with 18 
recommendations for further Council discussion. 19 
 Town Manager Vosburg said staff should review how the Town's various 20 
naming and sponsorship policies relate to one another and determine what would be 21 
appropriate to present to the Council committees for further consideration. 22 
 Mayor Gilbert agreed with that approach and asked if there was any other 23 
business to discuss. 24 
 Town Manager Randy Vosburg informed Council that the PeakFest Council 25 
booth would be located indoors due to the possibility of rain. 26 
 Councilmember Mu announced that the Z Camp "Connecting Community" 27 
event would be held on Saturday from 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 28 
 29 
[ADJOURNMENT]  30 

Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 5:02 p.m.   31 
                Jacques K. Gilbert  32 

 Apex, Mayor 33 
 Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC          34 
Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council                35 
Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman      36 
     37 
Minutes approved on _______ of ___________, 2026.         38 


